
Bastrop City Council 
1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas 78602 

Phone (512) 332-8800      Fax (512) 332.8819 
   

PURSUANT TO THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 551, THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL HOLD A 
REGULAR MEETING ON TUESDAY, April 8, 2014 AT 6:15 PM AT THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS LOCATED AT 
1311 CHESTNUT STREET, BASTROP, TEXAS TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MATTERS. 

1.   CALL TO ORDER    

2.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION  

3.   PRESENTATION - Bastrop Student Presentation on the Character Trait “Self-Discipline”    

4.   PROCLAMATION  

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

A.  CONSENT AGENDA  
All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 
enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Members so requests.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                       TAB   PG   REQUESTOR 

A.1 Approval of Minutes for the Special Workshop Meetings on March 18th and March 22nd, 
2014 and the Regular Meeting held on March 25, 2014. 

A.1 3 E. Lopez 

A.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on the SECOND READING of a proposed 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Bastrop Texas, amending the Budget for FY 
2014 in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various amounts 
herein; repealing all prior Ordinances and actions in conflict herewith; and providing for an 
effective date. 

A.2 23 Karla 
Stovall 

A.3 Consideration, Discussion and Possible Action on the SECOND READING of a proposed 
revision to an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, amending Article 
1.10 “Parks” of the Code of the City of Bastrop regarding membership on the Parks Board & 
residency requirements related to same; providing for severance and an effective date. 

A.3 26 Trey Job 

A.4 Approval of request to accept the PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR HUNTERS 
CROSSING, Section Three E (17 residential lots), West of Highway 304 and South of 
Hunters Point Drive, +/-7.247 acres within the Hunters Crossing Subdivision in the city 
limits of Bastrop, Texas. 

A.4 29 Melissa 
McCollum

A.5 Approval of request to accept the PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR HUNTERS 
CROSSING, Section Five B (55 residential lots), West of Highway 304 and North of 
Hunters Point Drive, +/-11.859 acres within the Hunters Crossing Subdivision  in the city 
limits of Bastrop, Texas. 

A.5 31 Melissa 
McCollum

A.6 Approval of the Final Plat for PECAN PARK Commercial Phase 1 consisting of 1 
commercial tract being +/-2.923 acres out of a +/- 311.32 acre tract within the Nancy 
Blakey Survey No. 98 within the city limits of Bastrop, TX located south of Hwy 71 West. 

A.6 33 Melissa 
McCollum

A.7 Approval of Bastrop Marketing Corporation’s request for reimbursement of expenses. A.7 37 K. Stovall

A.8 BOARD APPOINTMENT by Mayor Terry Orr and confirmation by the Bastrop City 
Council Members on the appointment of CHERYL LONG  as Place 6 Board Member to the 
Cemetery Advisory Board; a 3-year term to commence on April 2014 through June 2017. 

A.8 40 Mayor Orr

 B. PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES & OTHER ITEMS ELIGIBLE FOR CONSIDERATION 
AND/OR ACTION   

B.1 PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request for   a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Bed and Breakfast at 605 Water Street being +/- 
0.3030 acres Building Block 5, east of Water Street an area zoned SF-7, Single Family 
Residential located within the city limits of the City of Bastrop, Texas. 

B.1 44 Melissa 
McCollum



 
AGENDA – City Council Regular Meeting                                                                                      Page 2 of 2 
 

B.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on the FIRST READING of a proposed 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas to grant a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow a Bed and Breakfast at 605 Water Street being +/- 0.3030 acres Building 
Block 5, east of Water Street an area zoned SF-7, Single Family Residential located within 
the city limits of the City of Bastrop, Texas; setting out conditions; and providing an 
effective date. 

B.2 45 Melissa 
McCollum

********************************************************************************************
EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Council reserves the right to convene into Executive Session at any time during 
the meeting regarding any agenda item. In compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Ch.551 Government Code, 
Vernon’s Texas Code, Annotated, the item below will be discussed in closed session. 

1.  SECTION 551.071 – Consultations with Attorney related to legal matters 
******************************************************************************************** 

C.   OLD BUSINESS - NO ITEMS. 
D.   NEW BUSINESS   

D.1 Consideration & Discussion and possible Action on the approval of a RESOLUTION by 
the City Council of Bastrop Texas related to future actions by the City to ACQUIRE 
ADDITIONAL GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES for LONG TERM AND SHORT TERM 
NEEDS. 

D.1 59 Mike 
Talbot  

D.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on acceptance of the unaudited Monthly 
Financial Report for the period ending of February 28, 2014. 

D.2 63 Karla 
Stovall 

D.3 Consideration & Discussion and possible Action on the FIRST READING to amending 
Ordinance in the City Code Appendix A: Fee Schedule; Article A4.10 Vehicle Towing. 

D.3 91 Steve 
Adcock 

D.4 Consideration, Discussion, Possible Action and Update on Camp Swift Joint Land Use 
Study (JLUS) process and Policy Committee invitees. 

D.4 94 Melissa 
McCollum

E.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
E.1 The Bastrop City Council will meet in a closed/executive session pursuant to the Texas Government 

Code, Chapter 551, et seq, to discuss the following: 

1. SECTION 551.071(1)(A) & SECTION 551.071(2) – Consultation with Attorney concerning: (1) 
potential, pending, threatened, and/or contemplated litigation or claims, including but not limited to 
“Pine Forest Investments Group, LLC v The  City of Bastrop, et al, cause No. 29,052, In the 
21st Judicial District Court of Bastrop County, Texas,” and/or (2) matter upon which the 
Attorney has a duty and/or responsibility to report to the governmental body, concerning same, 
and/or any other matters posted on the agenda. 

2. SECTION 551.072 – Deliberation regarding real property:  Regarding the purchase, exchange, lease, 
disposition, or value of real property. 

3.   SECTION 551.074 – Personnel Matters 

4. SECTION 551.086- Certain Public Utilities: (1) Competitive Matters, (2) legal  advice, (3) real
 property, (4) economic development  
 

E.2  The Bastrop City Council will reconvene into open session to discuss, consider and/or take any 
 actions necessary related to the executive sessions noted herein, or regular agenda items, noted 
 above, and/or related items. 

F.   ADJOURNMENT 
C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at the City Hall in the Bastrop, Texas on 
the 4st day of April 2014 at 5:00 p.m. 

 Elizabeth Lopez 
 Elizabeth Lopez, City Secretary       

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS THE CITY OF BASTROP IS COMMITTED TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. 
BASTROP CITY HALL AND COUNCIL CHAMBERS ARE WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND SPECIAL MARKED PARKING IS AVAILABLE.  PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES WHO PLAN TO ATTEND THIS MEETING AND WHO MAY NEED ASSISTANCE ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE 

AT 512-332-8800. PLEASE PROVIDE A FORTY-EIGHT HOURS NOTICE WHEN FEASIBLE.         Confirm time posted:  KR 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  3 



City Council Special Utility Workshop Minutes   March 18, 2014                 Page 1 of 5 

 

 

BASTROP CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL WORKSHOP/UTILITY MEETING 

March 18, 2014 at 6:15 pm      

Pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter § 551, the City Council of Bastrop, Texas held a Special 

Workshop/Utility Meeting on Tuesday, March 18
th

, 2014 at 6:15 p.m. at the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers located 

at 1311 Chestnut Street in Bastrop, Texas to consider the following matters: 

A. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Terry Orr called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. A quorum was present: Council 

Members Ken Kesselus, Kay Garcia McAnally and Willie De La Rosa.  Council Member Dock Jackson was absent.    

B. ADJOURN THE SPECIAL UTILITY MEETING – At 6:16pm, Mayor Terry Orr adjourned the Special Utility 

Meeting and convened into a Utility Workshop Session to consider the following: 

 Mayor Terry Orr welcomed everyone and noted he likes to keep this meeting a little less formal than the Regular City 

Council Meetings and he encouraged public comments and participation.  Mayor Orr introduced City Manager Mike 

Talbot who commenced the meeting with the following agenda item. 

1. REVIEW AND DISCUSSION REGARDING THE REVISED FIVE (5) YEAR 

WATER/WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM.  

City Manager Talbot stated that in October 2013 the City Council had issued funding for water system 

rehabilitation; $550,000 development of additional water, $475,000 for water system line crossing at the 

bridge and State Hwy 71.  As part of that bond issue was $3,000,000 to $4,000,000 for street work and one 

aspect has been revised on the rehabilitation side on the streets the City Council has identified to be 

reconstructed. Some of the streets need infrastructure improvements so funds will be reverted to do the 

infrastructure improvements prior to the street repaving. 

The $475,000 for the water system line crossing at the Bridge and State Hwy 71, one option is now available 

to City Council which was not previously available is that we have the Bob Bryant Facility operational and we 

greatly enhance the fire protection in that area.  That was the purpose behind that line, so in discussion of the 

next item the Council will have at their discretion is if they wanted to move these funds towards the 

infrastructure for the water supply.    

In 2014, the City proposed moving into an Automated Metering Reading Information System for water and 

electric. The report reflects the option you want to go to.  Keep in mind that this is part of the October 2013 

Bond issue of approximately $1, 307,500 to be applied to water system and development.  Basically, we have 

about $1,700,000 available to apply to the water supply options.  

Mayor Terry Orr commented that the City had purchased a piece of property off of Hwy 71 and 20 to place an 

above ground water tank. City Manager referenced items on the wastewater side, the big project is the 

upgrade and improvements to the Gill’s Branch lift station.  We were verbally informed that we would not 

have to relocate that lift station, during the monthly meeting with TxDOT. Between upgrading the lift station 

and putting the new force main in and not having to relocate the lift station would allow us to install a reverter 

box to divert wastewater from one plant to another.  That would be a major step in improving the efficiency of 

the operations at the wastewater plant. We are currently pending a letter from TxDOT to move forward on this 

project.  

The rehab is targeted for area we have constant stoppages, we have budgeted for Phase I the analysis to make 

a determination that we go with a package plan on the eastside or build a plant that had been previously 

designed. It is up to the Council’s discretion to select the projects they would like to undertake.    

Mayor Terry Orr made mention that Council Member Dock Jackson was not in attendance as he was helping 

care for his ill mother.  Mayor Orr invited questions and comments from the public, with no response he 

moved onto Agenda item #2. 

2. UPDATE, DISCUSSION AND REVIEW REGARDING SHORT AND LONG TERM WATER 

SUPPLY OPTIONS. 

City Manager Talbot read the Preliminary Draft Report for discussion purposes only; the report has not been 

officially adopted but it is our water supply fundamentals and agreed upon assumptions.  First, is the search 

for additional public water supply and securing a long term water supply for 50 years.  Two, that the City 

Manager develop a 30 to 50 year water supply for the City of Bastrop, for the citizens, businesses and the 

city’s future growth.   

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  4 



City Council Special Utility Workshop Minutes   March 18, 2014                 Page 2 of 5 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal asked if these reports were different from others previously presented. The City 

Manager confirmed the reports were different; Mayor Pro-Tem Beal suggested they continue reading the 

reports.  The City Manager outlined the basic difference in the report that reflected XS Ranch Permit pending 

before Lost Pines Ground Water Conservation District, the Ingram Well Permit which would be going to the 

Board of the Lost Pines Ground Water Conservation District in April and May; City Manager Talbot 

requested to recuse himself as the presenter.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal noted that LCRA had an industrial permit 

approved.  City Manager Talbot noted there are no guarantees and stated we are looking at 6,000 acre-feet and 

we have to develop a phasing plan, because they may not approve this amount right from the beginning.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Bea stated l the amount of water we will need for the future according to CH2MHill is about 

6,000 acre-feet per year and were estimating and if we only utilize Fisherman’s park at 50% of the amount 

that we are using today that the City will still be able to provide is 2,000 acre-feet and only needing 4,000 

acre-feet.   

Mayor Terry Orr suggested that we put this into prospective as we presently use about 1,500 acre-feet per 

year.   We are looking at trying to secure water and not abandoning what we have but multiplying the amount 

(x4) for water will need for the next in 50 years; and for which he plans to be here to see.     

City Manager Talbot referenced CH2MHill report with their recommended that for 2015 we should planning 

having water for 2025 (10 years in advance).  In an extensive discussion with CH2MHill that the City can rely 

upon on the Willow Plant for a 50% production level which equals 1,027 acre-feet per year for at least 50 

years; this is a very important data point.   The Bob Bryant Well is a fairly new facility, but for the next 75 

year period it can produce 100% of its capacity with periodical checks of the wells.  The only caveat is that it 

is dependent on upon the fact there is not a significant drop in the water level of the Colorado River or if the 

City of Austin increases their use of wastewater and does not drop it into the river, a mining or unforeseen 

activity such as continuation drought.  Based upon this analysis and the existing wells on both sides of the 

river we can rely upon 1,887 acre-feet up through 2025.  The City must also commit to an aggressive water 

conservation plan for the future of the City.    

The next report narrows it down to three options for consideration based upon feedback received from the 

Council; Option 1 - Purchase the Ingram Well, Option II – Leasing water from LCRA, Option III - Purchase 

water rights at XS Ranch. 

Per City Manager Talbot, we currently have a Memorandum of Understanding with Mr. Ingram and XS 

Ranch and we are in current negotiations with LCRA.  The only environmental issue we have to deal with is 

with Ingram and LCRA well is the Houston Toad issue.  As far is the Ingram Well is concerned, I don’t 

believe a mitigation plan is going to be required.  We would use the State Highway right-of-way easements 

for any three options to bring the pipe line in and check with TxDOT and they don’t have any new plans for 

expanding the highway. The Hydrologist comments have been submitted to the ground water districts for both 

the Ingram Well and XS Ranch.  Testing has been done at Ingram, LCRA and XS Ranch.  This week, we 

received the water quality report from LCRA and they hit a 3,500 gallon per minute well and a 1,800 gallon 

per minute well.   

Mayor Terry Orr inquired about the water quality and the City Manager responded that LCRA looked like to 

good quality water on the two wells they just brought in.  Council Member McAnally inquired on the quality 

of water at XS ranch, which the City Manager confirmed was also good quality water.     

For clarification on our current analysis we don’t run the water well pumps 24 hours a day, we run the well 

pumps 16 hours a day; there’s 1,400 acre-feet at the Ingram Well, 1,000 acre-feet reserved for 1,000 acre-feet 

purchased from LCRA and with XS Ranch we would get 1,500 acre-feet reserved for 2,000 acre-feet 

purchased. Council McAnally inquired if we would have to pay for reserves and City Manager Talbot 

responded that under the current proposal with XS ranch we would not have too, but we would pay for the 

amount reserved from LCRA.    

Council Member McAnally referenced the LCRA website and an increase of 12%.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal 

stated the LCRA Board had recently met and will soon make a decision on what they will do with rates.  Once 

they establish a rate then he believes the process it would go through is TCEQ.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal offered 

clarification on the LCRA rates to other Council Members.   

City Manager Talbot added that the infrastructure cost to add an 18 inch line to bring the water in from the 

Ingram Well to the Mayfest Park facility is 3.1 million.   

City Manager Talbot commented that the cost for Phase I of XS Ranch is $3,700,000. Mayor Orr inquired on 

option 1 envisions a line from Mayfest Park and we take that as a step 1 or a 50 year water supply.  That is the 

overall plan; City Manager confirmed. Mayor Terry Orr if this is the plan, at some point we extend the line to 

pick up the additional 3,000 feet.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal noted that this is based on something 20 years from 

now.   

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  5 



City Council Special Utility Workshop Minutes   March 18, 2014                 Page 3 of 5 

 

Council Member Willie DeLaRosa asked Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal; according to this one paragraph if we’re 

going to pay for five wells and a reservoir of water, is there any way around that and we can deal with 

purchasing water from LCRA.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that LCRA develops their system rate by adding 

all costs that are required to maintain a “firm yield” in their system. This is currently 4,000 acre-feet from 

Highland Lakes, is about 2,000,000 acre-feet at capacity and the volume today is 760,000 acre-feet.  Firm 

Yield is the amount of water that is always available in any year even during a critical drought.  LCRA has 

determined this is not enough so they have made efforts to develop underground water resources. They have 

started a process of creating an off channel storage facility that would be designed to take in flood water, 

could be captured in this storage facility and that water could be utilized in a time of need for firm water 

demands in the lower part of the basin; like South Texas Nuclear Water or a Chemical Plant, there are a 

number of industrial users that require firm yield water. This is new territory for LCRA so they are embarking 

on creating new water supplies and how they are going to pay for it. What we are seeing is the beginning of 

that process.  It’s unknown what the rates are going to be in the future utilizing LCRA water. They will go 

through a process and invite public input and develop a rate.  The good thing for us is we have options if we 

choose to do so and not utilize LCRA water sometime in the future. We can put off the purchase of LCRA and 

put it off for 20 years and go with Option 1 then we would face that rate potential on day 1, if we went to XS 

ranch we wouldn’t be dealing with the rates and that would not be an issue.  

Council Member Willie DeLaRosa stated we needed to figure out what is best for us with consideration of the 

costs of water we are purchasing.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal, if we were to build the wells and pay some amount 

per acre-foot for water and we paid $1,000 per acre-foot and we inputted that payment in and built and 

operated the wells the electric costs would be significant. I think there are some numbers that will reflect this 

information. We believe the system rate today for LCRA is significantly cheaper than if we were going to do 

it on our own. Another element to remember there will be a point in time in the not too distant future perhaps 

10-15 years, the City of Austin will reach a point where it is utilizing enough LCRA water where a contractual 

trigger point will get hit, the City of Austin will begin to pay for water that it uses, but they do not pay today. 

But there will come a time in our immediate future when Austin will pay and the system rate will come down.   

City Manager Talbot referenced a report that reflected the operations cost, debt service and energy cost and 

noted that the report reflected the costs were per month. Council Member Ken Kesselus also inquired on the 

operational costs. Mayor Terry Orr recommended that when we discuss the options and consider the electric 

and infrastructure costs.    

In review of the city’s growth pattern, CH2MHILL recommendation is that a municipality should have water 

supplies available to meet the projected demand that is 10 years in the future.  The 10 year water supply 

“cushion” provides for coverage of “what if” scenarios, such as having a new industry locate in town, 

experiencing a more severe drought, or the failure of a well and/or well field, etc.  City Manager also 

referenced a report that reflected the XS Ranch scenario that included the cushion for 10 years ahead which 

also allowed time to bring a well online. The first well on XS Ranch is expected to come online in 2016 and 

carry us over to 2030, without needing a second operational well; two additional wells would extend the plan 

into 2040 and/or closely to 2045. The report also included the cost of water rights, infrastructure costs and 

staging of the second and third well which resulted in net value. The report also reflects our usage and 

projections which would track the points as to when to bring in the additional wells.    

For long term planning purposes,  

 Willow Plant - the City’s existing Willow Plant well field will remain productive at 50% of its 

current level for a period of 50 years, and the City’s water plan should assume replacement of that 

quantity at that time. In 2055 the City will conduct a detailed analysis of the plant to determine its 

ongoing viability, if any, and whether continued use of the plant is possible/ advisable and if so, at 

what level.    

 

 Bob Bryant – the City’s existing Bob Bryant Well field will remain productive for at 100% of the 

2011 historical production for a 75 year period.  As long as there is no significant reduction in the 

flows in the Colorado River or implementation of a substantial well field in the alluvial aquifer 

within a quarter mile of the nearest City well.  

 

o CH2MHILL noted that the level of water in the Colorado River could be substantially 

reduced from 2011 if the City of Austin increases reuse of its wastewater or if LCRA 

continues to withhold irrigation water to the lower basin, as they are currently doing.   

CH2MHILL notes that Bob Bryant Wells appear to have an approximate 40 year life, based on their 

apparent construction.  In 2045 to 2055, the City will conduct a detailed analysis to determine its 

ongoing viability and if continued use is possible/advisable, and if so at what level.  

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  6 



City Council Special Utility Workshop Minutes   March 18, 2014                 Page 4 of 5 

 

The combination of purchasing a minimum of 4,000 acre-feet and the capacity of Willow Plant and the Bob 

Bryant Plant will provide the City with a total long-term capacity from the two existing City wells fields of 

approximately 6,000 acre-feet annually until approximately 2055.   

In addition, City Manager Mike Talbot also noted that the City is committed to an aggressive water 

conservation program.   

CH2MHILL’s report included that if the City can afford infrastructure that they do so in one direction, either 

to the east, via the Ingram/LCRA route or to the north via the XS Ranch well (field). 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated we also needed to consider operation costs. He suggested getting water reserved 

with LCRA, because if we do not do so now we may not able to do so in the future.   

The Council continued their discussion and welcomed the public to express their personal thoughts and 

professional input on the discussion at hand. Mr. Mark Rose, General Manager/Chief Executive Officer for 

Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative accepted Council’s invitation to express his thoughts; he thinks this is a good 

opportunity to express to the Council what they have been expressing to others.  He and the City Manager 

have had extensive conversations throughout the year and stated the City Manager has always been accessible 

and open to an exchange of information.  Mr. Rose expressed concern for some items that had been discussed 

that concern him on options presented. He asked that everyone not make the assumption that the river we’re 

seeing out there today is going to be the river there will be here in 10-15 years. I think it is problematic to 

assume that Austin is not going to use its reuse of water when it is actively studying that now as one of its 

significant strategies. The reason for that is that were all focused on the drought.  He addressed a concern 

brought about by Council Member McAnally and Council Member DeLaRosa stating that TCEQ had 

forecasted that if LCRA does not add any additional water supplies to the system, then Austin’s growth alone 

will be the future drought.  The last lake was built in 1951. Austin has added 800,000 customers without a 

single drop of water added to their system.  As Austin continues to grow, they will get us into a drought 

because there will be no release to rice farmers or downstream.  When there’s no release that directly 

challenges one of your main assumptions which is to feed the alluvial well that you put in at 50%.  

City Manager Talbot stated that the Hydrologist report noted that that would not hold true if Austin increased 

its reuse. Mr. Rose noted that they were in agreement.  If we’re downstream, this is something we need to be 

concerned about, without any additional supplies to the LCRA system then you will not have the lake levels 

that you have now, you will not have the supply to honor Austin’s commitment.  Austin will be forced to do 

one or two things, go to ground water itself or reuse.   With consideration to the 50 year forecast - the river is 

in jeopardy; Bluebonnet, the County amongst others down river have been engaged in the discussion with 

LCRA to build additional water supplies.  The conclusion LCRA came to years ago, the only reservoir/only 

new lake for Austin to build is ground water.   

City Council Member McAnally had been discussing that point and noted we needed to take care of our needs 

first. Mr. Rose stated that ground water in Bastrop County needs to stay in Bastrop.  Bastrop needs don’t 

threaten; it’s the cities who request 30,000 to 40,000 acre-feet that cause the concern.  Mr. Rose made a point 

that Bluebonnet and several others have been engaged in trying to get LCRA to get into the ground water 

business – it’s critical to the survival of the river.  Lastly, we are in this together our service territories are the 

same, that is why this is so important.  He asked the Council Member consider all the work that is happening 

around them.  Look at the immediate rate impact of anything you do and what is the most cost effective now.  

Mr. Rose expressed his appreciation for the Council’s time and consideration.   

City Manager Talbot spent over a weeks’ time trying to compile the requested information from the Council 

that was considered at this meeting.   

Council Member McAnally suggested postponing a decision until all the Council Members could be present.  

This was such an important issue that each Council Member should be present to discuss and be part of the 

action taken.  The City Manager stressed to the Council that they have two permits that are being processed to 

the Ground Water District in April /May.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated this was the first time he had seen the present value analysis, but there are several 

factors to consider.  If you dig into the numbers, but I think it would be helpful for everyone to look into the 

details how and when the monies get spent for all of these alternatives along with the various commitments 

and when we need to make those commitments.   

Mayor Terry Orr stated that after today’s meeting, he would like to concentrate on the next 5-10 years and 

how that burdens how much money the City will spend.  He stated that we needed to concentrate on the next 

10 years.  The easiest money spent is where there is water and that is the Ingram Well.  He suggested 

purchasing water rights and building a line toward XS Ranch that 10,000 feet short, and/or building another 

line north; this would allow future Council to extend the lines as needed for the City’s growth.  If we look at 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  7 



City Council Special Utility Workshop Minutes   March 18, 2014                 Page 5 of 5 

 

Ingram we’re tying ourselves to LCRA, he didn’t think that was true he thought there was another option to 

consider. We are not stuck on going with LCRA.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal offered that the Council Members consider the operational cost and the distance of 

pipelines.  He was not disagreeing, he noted that it would be a good insurance to buy XS water rights and 

reserve waster at LCRA and use your rights in 20 years and you could still go to LCRA. Mayor Pro-Tem Beal 

also noted that the April 22nd timeline was getting close and we need to move forward.  Mayor Orr noted that 

this a good point.     

Mayor Terry Orr noted this meeting had been enlightening and Council Member McAnally echoed his 

sentiment. Mayor Orr suggested for the Council’s consideration that this can be a combination of options, but 

the goal was to come up with something.   

City Manager Talbot stated the reports provided at today’s meeting would be provided on the City’s website.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal and Council Member McAnally expressed their appreciation for Mr. Gene Kruppa’ s 

professional input and assistance with the reports provided at this evenings meeting.    

3. DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION OF ANY AND ALL MATTERS RELATED TO THE CITY’S 

UTILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: (A) CURRENT AND FUTURE PROVISION OF 

WATER/WASTEWATER AND ELECTRIC SERVICE TO THE CITIZENS OF THE CITY AND IN 

THE EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION, (B) THE PROTECTION AND PRESERVATION OF 

FUTURE WATER AND ELECTRIC RESOURCES, OPERATIONS, COMPETITIVE MATTERS, 

POTENTIAL UPGRADES, PLANNING, AND (C) THE RESOLUTION OF UTILITY ISSUES AS 

THEY ARISE. 

C. THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL ADJOURN THE UTILITY WORKSHOP SESSION AND 

RECONVENE BACK INTO SPECIAL UTILITY MEETING AND/OR TAKE ANY ACTIONS NECESSARY 

RELATED TO THE SPECIAL UTILITY WORKSHOP NOTED HEREIN. 

  At 8:23pm, Mayor Terry Orr reconvened back into the Special Utility Meeting.  No action was taken. 

D. THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL MEET IN A CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO 

THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER §551, ET SEQ, TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING: 

1. SECTION(S) 551.071(1) (A) and 551.071 (2) - Consultation(s) with Attorney: (1) Threatened and/or 

contemplated litigation, and (2) Matters upon which the attorney has a duty and/or responsibility to report to 

the governmental body. 

2. SECTION 551.072 – Deliberation regarding real property: Regarding the purchase, exchange, lease, 

disposition, or value of real property. 

3. SECTION 551.086- Certain Public Utilities: Competitive Matters 

E. THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL RECONVENE INTO OPEN SPECIAL UTILITY MEETING TO 

DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR TAKE ANY ACTIONS NECESSARY RELATED TO THE EXECUTIVE 

SESSION NOTED HEREIN, OR REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS, NOTES ABOVE, AND/OR RELATED 

ITEMS. 

F. ADJOURN - Council Member Kay Garcia McAnally made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Council 

Member Willie DeLaRosa, meeting adjourned at 8:23 pm. 

 

 

APPROVED: _________________________________ ATTEST: _________________________________ 

 Terry Orr, Mayor Elizabeth Minerva Lopez, City Secretary  

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  8 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       1 
 

BASTROP CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES SPECIAL WORKSHOP/RETREAT SESSION 
Saturday, March 22, 2014 at 9:00 am 

 
Pursuan.t to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the Bastrop City Council will hold a Special Workshop/Retreat  

SessionRetreat Session on Saturday, March 22, 2014 at 9:00 am at the Little Colony A/B Room, Hyatt Regency Lost 

Pines Resort and Spa, 575 Hyatt Lost Pines Rd, Lost Pines, Texas 78612, to discuss the following:   

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Terry Orr called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  A quorum was present, Mayor 

Pro-Tem Joe Beal, Council Members Kay Garcia McAnally, Ken Kesselus, Willie De La Rosa.   Council 

Member Dock Jackson was absent due to his mother’s passing.   

2. WORKSHOP/RETREAT – THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL CONVENE INTO A SPECIAL 

WORKSHOP/ RETREAT SESSION, FACILITATED BY RAY ASSOCIATES, INC., TO DISCUSS THE 

FOLLOWING: 

 The workshop/Retreat convened into Special Workshop/Retreat Session at 9:04 am. Mayor Terry Orr welcomed 

Facilitator Katherine Ray with Ray Associates, who kicked off the retreat by reading the “Ground Rules for 

Discussions”:    

1. Every idea has value; no idea is unworthy. 

2. Respect each person’s turn to speak. 

3. Take Responsibility to voice your own ideas. 

4. Make sure everyone gets the opportunity to speak. 

5. Respect others; address issues rather than personalities. 

6. Don’t take anything personally. 

 

 

A. A REVIEW OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS SINCE LAST YEAR’S RETREAT 
  

TOP 10 PRIORITIES 

1 Develop a Short-Term 

and Long-Term Water 

Plan Strategy for the 

City of Bastrop                                  

(Mayor Pro-Tem Joe 

Beal & City Manager) 

Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal noted the goal/priority time frame for this item 

had been set for completion by mid July 2013.   He expressed the need to 

move quicker than later because the timeline had not been met.  On the 

positive side, Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated we were in a good place to make 

a decision. He also mentioned the materials provided at the utility meeting 

held on March 18th were very insightful and will help make a decision.  He 

stated “Mike that was a good job”   A new time line was set for May 

20143.   

2 
Examine Feasibility of 

Moving Toward Form-

Based Codes for Zoning                                                        

(Council Member 

McAnally & City 

Manager) 

Council Member Kay Garcia McAnally stated she would have liked to 

have Mr. Herb Goldsmith present at the meeting with respect to the Form 

Based Code discussion.    City Manager Mike Talbot stated the goal had 

been established, a committee had been created and the funding the 

Council had provided funded ½ of the project.   Mr. Herb Goldsmith is the 

Chairman of the committee and they are working on the phases of the 

project and the deliverables.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal inquired if the timeline had been met, Council 

Member Kay Garcia McAnally responded in that she was “very satisfied” 

with the outcome.  City Manager Mike Talbot noted that the biggest 

obstacle was the funding.  Once the budget is approved they can meet 

periodically and set the scope of work.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal requested to set a time frame then we could revisit 

and see if we were on schedule. He also requested to add End-Filled 

Policies for underdeveloped land. City Manager stated this would be a big 

initiative for the Form Based Code. 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  9 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       2 
 

3 Review of Hotel 

Occupancy Tax Funding 

Receipts and 

Expenditures                                                                       

(Council Member Ken 

Kesselus & City 

Manager) 

In a jovial state, Council Member Ken Kesselus stated they sprang into 

action within minutes. Council Member Kesselus stated no one had 

questioned the process.  There is a three-tier process and noted they have 

received two summer grants.  Council Member Kesselus stated that City 

Manager Talbot can provide the City Council Members a 5 year report on 

the rolling funds.    

Council Member DeLaRosa inquired as to what was our reserve level and 

City Manager Talbot responded that we in fact were at $1.865 Million. 

Council Member Willie DeLaRosa inquired if funds were left for other 

items.  City Manager Talbot responded that we have funding for items that 

were budgeted; keeping a good fund balance is healthy.    

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal questioned the success of the bus project. City 

Manager Talbot responded that we did not want to pursue the bus project 

this year.   

Council Member McAnally stated that there are other items that have to be 

considered with the HOT funds.  

Council Member Kesselus encouraged those programs who are interested 

in applying for funding should do so in a timely fashion.    

Chief Financial Officer Stovall offered to mail out applications to those 

interested in applying.   

4 Consider General Fund, 

Tax Rate & Future 

Bonded Indebtedness for 

Infrastructure 

Improvements.    

(Council Member Willie 

DeLaRosa & City 

Manager) 

City Manager Talbot stated that the bonds were issued in October 2013, 

which resulted with a successful bond rating upgrade.   

Council Member Willie DeLaRosa noted that we do not want to have tax 

payers incur additional rates. Mayor Terry Orr stated that the Council has 

been very rigorous in their attention to the community needs.     

Council Member Kesselus inquired about what the city could do to 

maintain the same Ad valorem tax rate.  Mayor Terry Orr inquired if this 

was a viable asset.   Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated it’s always good to reduce 

the tax rate if we do not need the money.   

5 Initiate Benchmarking, 

including salaries, career 

ladders, staffing levels, 

types & levels of 

services, Financial 

Matrix, Succession 

Planning, Tax Rate, 

Indebtedness                                                                   

(Mayor Pro-Tem Joe 

Beal and & City 

Manager) 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that to date, City Manager Talbot had been 

providing the Council with bi-weekly reports.   Mayor Terry Orr requested 

to have City Manager Talbot hold a presentation for additional details, but 

not at this time.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal asked how are we in a provision stand point and 

inquired on what other cities are doing.  He also questioned if we do peer 

analysis.   

6 Create  clearly 

communicated 

reasonably attainable list 

of Council Priorities for 

City Manager   

City Manager Talbot developed the water management report for the City 

Council Members to review.  It was not up to the Council to determine 

what was acceptable and/or not acceptable.  Mayor Orr stated the Council 

had not formulized and this had been done in spurts.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal referenced a list of priorities provided in the City 

Manager’s report and stated we have a list.    

7 Review Convention 

Center Operations                                                

(Mayor Terry Orr & City 

Mayor Orr and City Manager have met regularly on this issue.   Council 

Member McAnally stated she sees good ideas formulating for more sales 

next year 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  10 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       3 
 

Manager) Mayor Pro-Tem Beal inquired when the Marketing Corp contract expired; 

June 2016.    

8 Identify more clearly 

what needs to come to 

Council and what be 

decided by staff                                          

(Council Member Dock 

Jackson & City 

Manager) 

City Manager Talbot gave a detailed report and stated the Council 

Meetings had been reduced tremendously with city staff taking on more 

responsibility and taking action. 

Council Member Kesselus stated he would like to see more items on the 

Consent Agenda.  Council Member McAnally acknowledged Karla & Trey 

for their work and stated they have been outstanding.   City Manager 

Talbot echoed that compliment completely.  

9 Create Cohesive 

Citywide Equipment 

Replacement Program 

for the City 

City Manager Talbot referenced the vehicle list that had been provided for 

the Council review and stated we could now build into it.  Council Member 

McAnally acknowledged the recent purchases that were much needed for 

the Police Department. Council Member DeLaRosa acknowledged the 

action, but requested to equally purchase vehicles for other departments.  

City Manager Talbot noted that department staff was allocating funds for 

vehicles.   

10 Create a unified vision 

for the City of Bastrop  

(Council Member Kay 

Garcia McAnally & City 

Manager) 

This item is referencing Goal #1; Council Member DeLaRosa stated the 

Council had done a great job on covering this item.  Mayor Orr noted that 

the Council had not conducted a formal review with the City Manager this 

year.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that we have a new process that the City 

Manager had worked on; which reflects the milestones and actions.  He 

added that the Council had not followed the process.    

 

 

Facilitator Katherine Ray requested we “Celebrate” the accomplishments such as: 

 Hiring a Police Chief 

 Award received by the Finance Department 

 Hiring a new Engineer  

 Public Works Director 

Let’s take time to take stock of where we are and where we are going.  Council Member McAnally also 

included the awards received by the Main Street Program, the YMCA and stated there is a lot of 

momentum and we are moving forward in our community.  

Council Member DeLaRosa added that within the last 5 years he’s only received a few complaints.  The 

hard work and success is attributed to City Manager Talbot and his staff.  City Manager Talbot responded 

that “Today we have the finest set of Director’s that he has worked with in 30 years.” 

 

BENCHMARKING MATERIALS/PROGRESS 

Facilitator Katherine Ray referenced Handout “Benchmark Matrix showing how the City of Bastrop 

compares with other Cities prepared initially for 2007 Compensation Study which was updated for 2014.  

The review reflected scoring from the 2007 Study and the 2014 study in comparison to potential 

comparable cities, their population, number of employees, operating budged, sales tax, ad valoreum 

taxable value, percent of population, median household income,  new home costs and the cities growth 

rate.  

Review of the Survey of Water, Wastewater and Utilities Office Costs and Staffing Levels for the City of 

Bastrop, Texas January –February 2014.    

Review Survey to compare the City of Bastrop Convention Center and staffing to similar Convention 

Centers operated by Texas Cities in January 2014.   

 

 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  11 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       4 
 

CITY OF BASTROP VEHICLE INVENTORY 

Facilitator Katherine Ray referenced the City of Bastrop FY 2013 Vehicle List dated February 25, 2014.   

The report reflected the number of vehicles per department, the rating of 1 (good) to 5 (bad) and the 

mileage.    

 

  DEPARTMENT #VEHICLES 

/RATING 

 DEPARTMENT #VEHICLES 

/RATING 

Administration 1     /     1  Parks 8  / 1.88 Avg. 

Electric 12   /   2.42 Avg.  Planning  2   /   2.25 Avg. 

Finance/Meter 

Serv. 

4   /    3.25 Avg.  Public Works 17  / 2.47 Avg. 

Fire  4  /   3.5 Avg.  Police  19 /  2.31 Avg. 

IT Department 1      /     4   Water/Wastewater 13   /  2.46 Avg. 

     

  

 

CONNECTING BASTROP – VISIONING TASK FORCE REPORT 

Council Member Kay Garcia McAnally gave a brief insight on the Key Initiatives of the Visioning Task 

Force for Connection Bastrop.    Council Member McAnally stated that the Visioning Task Force began 

with a great group of people who have set five priorities as a way of positively branding our City and a 

better quality of life for our children.   

1. Master Plan  

2. Find Partnerships within the Community 

3. Enhance Marketing Efforts 

4. Strengthen Educational Underpinnings 

5. Nurturing a broad-based Culture & Arts movement in the Community. 

 

Council Member Ken Kesselus expressed that he was in favor of what he has seen and asked what we 

could do today to set in motion a process.   He asked if we needed to hire a consultant to review the 

process and comprehensive plan.    
 

Mayor Terry Orr elicited the Council Members input and asked if they support the interest and efforts 

they can move forward.  
 

Council Member DeLaRosa noted that the funds had not yet been allocated.  City Manager Talbot stated 

that he had met with Judge Pape and there is a possibility of 1.5 to 2 million dollars in funding which will 

be distributed to the three cities upon receipt.  Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated this is the time for us to get our 

request in.  
 

Council Member McAnally requested a consensus from the Council on how to proceed.  Mayor Pro-Tem 

Beal stated that we needed to update the Comprehensive Plan which will cost approximately $200,000.  

The Council Members held a brief discussion with regard to the cost of updating the comprehensive plan 

and requested that the City Manager include this in the budget process. 
 

Council Member McAnally requested Council Member Kesselus help with the process and stated he 

would be a benefit.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal suggested putting in place a parallel process to get the City Manager and consider 

where we will get the money to fund this project.   
 

The Council held a discussion with regard to education, Council Member McAnally stated that our 

community offers what is needed, but we need to create a post education to match our community and fits 

our demographics.  
 

Mayor Terry Orr stated that “educating our children was a valuable asset and it needed to start here.  We 

are going to see the goal is to educate the world and create a great research institution.  It needs to start in 

our region.   Mental Acuity – educate your children this area needs to be a leader in educational growth.”  
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated he was part of the recent efforts of supporting Austin Community College in 

Bastrop.  He stated there was an effort underway creating an awareness of what the community needs and 

they would be willing to revisit the possibility.   He asked the Council Members to consider their role in 

making this happen in efforts to move this issue forward. 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  12 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       5 
 

TIMING FOR FUTURE ANNEXATIONS/UTILITY EXPANSIONS 

ReviewReview  of handout in reference to the City of Bastrop, Colony and Aqua Sewer CCN.  It 

reflected the City limits, the 1 mile ETJ, Colony CCN, Aqua Sewer CCN, Bastrop Sewer CCN.  The 

report also included the addition CCN for Aqua and the Bastrop Water CCN by BEFCO. 

Facilitator Katherine Ray invited discussion; Mayor Terry Orr stated hopes to see the City of Bastrop 

extending its city limits in 3 to 4 years.   

In support of Mayor Orr’s idea, Council Member Kesselus stated that we should have a long range 

annexation policy.    

City Manager Talbot included that XS Ranch would be a voluntary annexation and a way of starting the 

process.   

Council Member DeLaRosa inquired if the sewer infrastructure at Burleson Crossing 

Development/Academy at Hwy71/Hwy21 was a MUDD.   

Council Member Kesselus stated that the infrastructure moving out towards Hwy 20 is important in our 

efforts to expand.   

City Manager Talbot noted that our annexation is very close to Hwy 21.   

Council Member DeLaRosa inquired as to what CNN is going to serve the area.  Council Member 

Kesselus asked how we do we make it work and how we would pay for sewer.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that they could serve outside the district but we needed to consider if we 

wanted to get into that; if so, he suggested contracting with the MUDD or buying them out.  

City Manager Talbot noted that we would need to see how the MUDD was created.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that when we expand our City limit line we accept the liability of providing a 

level of service to everyone with the city limits.  So do we want to provide the services ourselves or do 

we want to contract with someone to provide the service.  He added that it may not be a significant 

liability if we can prove we have septic tank services.   

Council Member DeLaRosa stated that Mr. Steve Mills would be getting back to us once he contacts the 

developer(s).    

Council Member Beal suggested that the best engineering solutions would be agreements put in place if 

we annex the area.  New developments would need to get out of the area service.   

City Manager Talbot stated he would be checking the Colony agreement. 

Council Member Kesselus asked Mayor Pro-Tem Beal for professional opinion and direction on moving 

forward.   

City Manager Talbot stated that we have not annexed in two years so we have more pull to do so.   He 

also noted that a portion of Cedar Creek is in our ETJ and requires Bastrop approval.  Mayor Pro-Tem 

Beal asked the Council Members if they wanted the City Manager to explore options.    

 

 

FINANCIAL/DEBT STATUS 

City Manager Mike Talbot referenced an email he received from Dan Wegmiller Managing Director with 

Specialized Public Finance Inc.; he outlined the City’s Debt Capacity and Current Position.   The rating 

reports look at the City’s economy, financial performance, management and debt levels.   

 Fitch affirmed the City’s rating of “AA-“; they anticipate overall debt, currently at 8.7 % of 

market value, to remain elevated given remaining build-out anticipated in the regions.  The 

City’s principal amortization is rapid at 62% in 10 years.  City officials anticipate seeking 

GO authorizations in 2015. 

 

 Key Rating Drivers – Austin-area high growth; Bastrop participates in the robust population 

and tax base growth characteristic of the greater Austin area.   Growth prospects remain 

strong given the City’s location along the Highway 781 corridor to Houston.  

 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  13 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       6 
 

 Well Managed Finances – Finances are structurally balanced and typically outperform the 

budget.  The city maintains sound reserve levels which help to mitigate above-average sales 

tax exposure. 

 

 Manageable Debt Profile – The city’s overall debt is above average, although its carrying 

costs (deb service, pension, and other post-employment contributions) are moderate.  Near 

term capital needs are modest. 

 

 Above-Average Economic Metric – Income and wealth trend above average.   A low 

unemployment rate reflects both the city’s growing commercial presence and proximity to 

Austin’s broad employment baste. 

S&P upgraded the City two notches in 2013 to AA noting the following, “Standard & Poor’s Rating 

Services raised its rating on Bastrop, Texas existing general obligation (GO) debt two notches to “AA” 

from “A+” based on our recently released local GO criteria.” They consider the City’s Management 

strong, which is supported by a good financial management assessment score.    

City officials have developed a 10-year financial plan for revenues and expenditures that it uses during 

the city’s budged development process.  The city’s formalized operating reserve policy calls for the 

maintenance of 35% of expenditures for the enterprise funds and 25% of expenditures for the general 

fund.                                                                                                                                                                 

The City also maintains an investment policy that follows investment guidelines outlineds by state statues 

and requires updates to the City Council on a quarterly basis.  Other key practices include management’s 

conservative revenue and expenditure assumptions based on historical trend analysis and monthly 

financial reporting to the council. The city maintains a five-year capital plan for its utilities; it does not 

currently maintain one for general fund capital projects.  

Both ratings recognize the additional debt plans contemplated by the city in the future, including 2014 

and don not view those as having a negative impact on the City’s rating even though the City is 

considered high debt.  The rating agencies view the City is making needed investment that should 

moderate with growth.  

The legal debt limit is established by the City’s tax rate limitations which you are not close to trigging at 

this time. 

Finally, debt capacity is also a function of your tax rate or utility rates, to the extent your tax base grows 

or utility customer base grows, the city will see added capacity based on the additional revenue from new 

customers.  Any adjustment to the utility rates will result in added capacity – the key to utility rates is 

keeping an eye on the City’s competitive position to other cities with respect to the rates.   That said, 

competitive rate studies should take into account cities which have or are securing long-term water needs 

within their comparable rates – making sure a true comparison is taking place.  

Council Member DeLaRosa referenced the 3 million dollars in debt and inquired about a Bond Election 

within the next two years.   

City Manager Talbot stated that it could be included in the General Election.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that Bond funds for infrastructure are viewed favorably.  He inquired if there 

is a constraint from allowing us to do what we need to do. 

City Manager Talbot stated that right now we are in good standing, but if we over extend our debt may be 

a factor.  

Council Member Kesselus stated we needed to engage the citizens if we were going to engage into a 

Bond election.  

Council Member DeLaRosa noted that we needed to give the citizens more options other than streets.  

Also consider how much more tax rate without exceeding the .60 tax rate.  He suggested putting our city 

of 8k against other city’s our size.  

 

 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  14 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       7 
 

OOTHER (NO MATERIALS) 

 Fire Protection/ESD 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal asked our City Council Members to consider “where do we stand if our fire 

fighters  applies/or applied for another position.  The Council Members held a brief discussion and 

noted the concern for replacement of staff and began their discussion on a paid Fire Department and 

the location of a new fire station.   

City Manager Talbot stated we had a piece of land we were interested in using for the new Fire 

Station, however Chief Perry did not support the purchase of the property.    

Mayor Orr brought up the following two subjects for discussion: 

1) Do we want to be part of ESD? 

2) Do want a Fire Station that we control? 

Council Member Willie DeLaRosa stated that ESD wants to come into Bastrop because they want ad 

valoreum taxes.     

 

 Paid Fire Department? 

Mayor Orr stated that he thought we could support a paid Fire Department for an additional .03 cents 

increase.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal asked the Council Members to consider if they are/or not getting the necessary 

services provided.  City Manager noted that there is a skeleton crew during the day since it’s a 

volunteer Fire Department.    

Mayor Orr suggested having 3-4 Fire Fighters inspecting our commercial buildings and fire 

sprinklers.   

Council Member DeLaRosa asked if the cost would be $60k per Firefighter.  City Manager Talbot 

clarified that the $60k would be the total.   

Mayor Orr offered the following suggestions for Councils consideration: 

 New Fire Station  

 Ladder Truck/Pumper 

 Expanding our City limits to the west 

 Fire/Police Annex 

 Grants for Fire Equipment 

 

 

 Build Fire Station? 

City Manager Talbot added that Fire Chief Perry did not support the Tahitian area as a good site for 

the new Fire Station, but recommended an area near Hwy 304.     

Council Member Kesselus stated we needed to start thinking of expanding our fire departments 

capability and consider if we needed to call for a bond election. 

Facilitator Katherine Ray encouraged the Council to stay a volunteer program as long as they could.  

There are various aspects that needed to be considered with a paid Fire Department, such as their 

days off and coverage during that time, pay, training, insurance, etc.   

City Manager Talbot suggested increasing the stipend per for fire call, additional training and 

supporting our volunteer Firefighters in any way we can.    

Council Member McAnally asked if we consider something that was less expensive.  Council held a 

brief discussion regarding a new Fire Station, City Manager Talbot stated that we needed to consider 

it with annexation and factor in their response time.  The State has Fire Marshalls who have 

standards on recommended locations. 

 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  15 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       8 
 

 Annual Review of City Manager 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that the City Manager put in place a well thought out process and 

suggested that the Council precede with it.  He acknowledged that time the City Manager had 

invested to complete the process and stated that some of the steps could be done in Executive Session 

and some directly with the City Manager.  

Council Member DeLaRosa he agreed with Mayor Pro-Tem but noted that a lot of closed sessions 

were being held on water.    

Mayor Orr asked the City Manager to hand out the process for a self-evaluation at the City Council 

Meeting scheduled for April 8th, 2014.   

Council Member McAnally noted that the process should have been handed out at the last meeting.   

Council Member Kesselus asked that we also needed to consider the requests placed upon the City 

Manager and he may not have the time.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal requested that we do so as soon as it was practical.   

 

 Potential Construction of a Firearms Range 

Mayor Orr stated we needed to provide our Police Department with training, instructors and 

sophisticated equipment.  We needed to consider how we train our officers and the value of having 

their own firing range.  He also noted that Elgin has an outdoor firing range. 

Council Member Kesselus suggested making a deal with the State; Mayor Pro-Tem Beal and Council 

Member Kesselus both supported an inter-local agreement with Camp Swift. 

City Manager Talbot noted that all of our officers are qualified and stated that we have used the 

Sheriff’s facility but we are currently working on enhancing our relationship with Camp Swift.  He 

added that Police Chief Adcock will provide a report for the Council.      

Council Member McAnally stated that this segways into what our Police Officers; they provide 

support for the City of Bastrop 8k residents which increases to 30k plus during special events.  

Therefore we need to consider if we are short staffed.   

City Manager Talbot was in support that we needed to additional Police Officers and suggested that 

we could consider this as part of the budget process. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated we needed to focus on our community, in-fill development and the 

comprehensive plan. 

Mayor Orr stated that he found strengths in each Council Member and they all deserve so much 

appreciation for their efforts.  

B. KAY MCANALLY’S REPORT ON CONNECTING BASTROP – THE KEY INITIATIVES 

FROM THE VISIONING TASK FORCE.   The Council held an insightful discussion earlier.  

 

C. DISCUSSION OF OTHER KEY PRIORITIES COUNCIL MEMBERS WANT TO DISCUSS 

FOR THE NEXT 12 MONTHS’ WORK 

Council Member McAnally stated that we needed to pay attention that it’s becoming more difficult to 

afford living in town.  Bastrop EDC Director Dave Quinn responded that a developer is currently working 

on a housing study.  XS Ranch has done of study of what the market needs, we may want to include a 180 

agreement. 

The Council acknowledged the success of the joint efforts between the EDC and the City.  Council 

Member McAnally added that going through the City Manager was essential.   

Council Member McAnally advised the Council to encourages and supports the Hispanic community: 

 To Vote 

 Downtown Business Alliance would be holding a “Tejano Night.”   

 Encourage Developers to acknowledge our Hispanic Culture by naming streets and 

parks on future projects.    

 Festivals that include the Hispanic population and celebrate their heritage. 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  16 



City Council Special Workshop/Retreat               March 22, 2014       9 
 

Council Member DeLaRosa acknowledged this is Mayor Orr’s last Retreat Workshop Session.   
 

Mayor Terry Orr stated that he has enjoyed his time as Mayor and being of service to our citizens.   
 

City Manager Talbot stated this is the best relationship he has had with a Mayor.    
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal acknowledged Mayors encouragement of the Council’s efforts and allowed them 

the opportunity to do their thing – that’s a true attribute.    
 

Council Member Kesselus stated that Mayor has been a role model for each of us.   

 

 

3.   THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION TO DISCUSS, 

 CONSIDER AND/OR TAKE ANY ACTIONS NECESSARY RELATED TO THE WORKSHOP 

 ITEMS. 

 

MOTION – Council Member Kay McAnally made a motion to: 

(1) Instruct the City Manager to recommend a firm or consultant to lead an initiative to 

    create a long-range Comprehensive Plan and  
 

(2) Invite the Vision Task Force to attend a Council Meeting with recommendations for 

     how they can best organize and work through the recommendations within their 

     vision plan. 

SECONDED - Council Member Ken Kesselus seconded the motion. 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 4-0. 

 

 

City Manager Talbot took a moment to thank City Staff for attending the retreat and acknowledged a depth of 

feeling on discussions held today.   

 

 

4.   ADJOURN – Mayor Terry Orr requested a motion to adjourn the meeting.   At 1:30pm, Council Member Kay 

 Garcia McAnally made  the motion; seconded by Council Member Ken Kesselus.    

 

 

 
 

Approved: ______________________________________  Attest: ____________________________ 

Terry Orr, Mayor      Elizabeth Lopez, City Secretary 

 

      

             

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  17 



 Regular City Council Meeting      March 25, 2014                 Page 1 of 5 

 

BASTROP CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
March 25, 2014 at 6:15 pm 

Pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter § 551, the City Council of Bastrop, Texas held a Regular Meeting on 

Tuesday, March 25
th

, 2014 at 6:15 p.m. at the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut Street in 

Bastrop, Texas to consider the following matters: 

1. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Terry Orr called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. A quorum was present: Council 

Members Ken Kesselus, Kay Garcia McAnally, Willie De La Rosa and Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal arrived at 6:25 pm.  

Council Member Dock Jackson was absent.    

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION – Chief Financial Officer Karla Stovall led the Pledge and 

 Police Chief Adcock introduced Chaplain Jonah Beyer who lead us in prayer.   

3. PRESENTATIONS – None.   

4. PROCLAMATIONS – None. 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS – Ms. Melissa Tucker addressed the Council Members and expressed her concern about the 

lack of services provided for the indigent people here in Bastrop.  She expressed that she and her mother lived in their 

vehicle due to set backs that started about four years ago.  She felt that the low income/public housing was not 

attainable due to a 6 month to 1 year waiting list and that the City does not offer a facility to shower or have a hot meal 

2-3 times a week.     

 The Council all expressed empathy for her situation and Council Member Kesselus stated he had been a minister for a 

number of years and dealt with matters such as this.  Our city is too small to have these facilities, but we are very 

supportive of programs that help those in need.  He informed her that larger cities such as Austin have the facilities and 

more resources to help others.   

Council Member Kesselus and Council Member McAnally suggested that she visit one of local Churches as they 

offered meals twice a week.   

Council Member McAnally invited Chaplain Jonah Beyer to meet with Ms. Tucker and her mother in efforts to help 

guide them on their path of helping themselves and getting on the waiting list for public housing.   

Ms. Tucker expressed her appreciation to the Council for their support, guidance and offer of hope.    

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  

ABSENCE COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON - City Manager Talbot announced that Council Member Dock Jackson 

would not be in attendance due to his mother’s passing.     

VIETNAM VETERAN’S MEMORIAL – Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal invited everyone to attend the Texas Capitol 

Vietnam Veterans Monument Dedication in Austin on Saturday, March 29, 2014 at 10:00am.  

Members of the Memorial High School JROTC Minutemen Battalion from San Antonio will participate in the 

dedication of the monument that honors of all the Texans who served in the Vietnam War and a memorial to the 3,417 

who died. 

City Manager Mike Talbot informed the Council Members that a copy of the 5 Year Water System Capital 

Improvement Projects had been submitted to Ms. Fishbeck.   City Manager Talbot requested that Ms. Fishbeck provide 

the two numbers noted as: 

2014 CIP Projects 

 Infrastructure for Water Supply 

 Elevated Tank West Side Projects  

City Manager Talbot provided the Council Members the “Revised 5-year Water and Wastewater Capital Improvement 

Program Fiscal Year 2013 through Fiscal Year 2018” dated March 24, 2014 and stated the handout was a “Work in 

Progress”.   

City Manager provided the Council Members the “Water Supply Options Present Worth Cost Summary Sheet.”  The 

costs reflected included all wells, infrastructure, water rights, electrical, chlorine and lost pine GCD costs.   The current 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  18 



 Regular City Council Meeting      March 25, 2014                 Page 2 of 5 

 

present valued used 3% interest rate and future costs escalated by 2.5% per year.  The Option/Costs were $11,985,801 

for XS Ranch, $12,092,224 Ingram/LCRA and $11,065,172 LCRA. 

In addition, City Manager Talbot provided them the “Water Supply 30 Year Option Present Worth Cost Summary 

Sheet.”  He noted that the costs reflected on the summary were cost shown include all wells, infrastructure, water 

rights, electrical, chlorine and lost pine GCD costs.  The present value used was 3% interest rate and future costs 

escalated by 2.5 % per year.  Note that costs reflected a 1,500 gallon per minute well at XS Ranch.   The Option/Costs 

were $$10,999,204 for XS Ranch, $12,092,224 for Ingram/LCRA and $11,065,172 for LCRA.   

Council Member Willie DeLaRosa asked City Manager Talbot how soon he was needing a response.  City Manager 

Talbot noted that various water options have been provided for Council’s consideration, but there’s additional work to 

be accomplished to meet the April 22, 2014 deadline that the Council agreed upon previously as the desired and 

targeted “decision-making” date.     

Mayor Orr thanked City Manager Mike Talbot who in turn acknowledged his appreciation for Gene Kruppa’ s 

assistance with the reports.   Mayor Orr added that he sees a value in the City owning water rights and stated that he is 

confident that the Council will do the analysis and consider the impacts of each option.  Again, he stressed that owning 

our own water rights would be an asset for the City.   

City Manager Talbot offered to have an updated report for the Council’s consideration and suggested having a Special 

Workshop/Utility Meeting the week of April 1, 2014.   City Council Members held a brief discussion and agreed upon 

Wednesday, April 2, 2014 at 6:15pm at the Convention Center.  The venue was changed due to schedule conflicts on 

the meeting room availability.    

Mayor Orr requested that at the upcoming Special Workshop/Utility Meeting that we listen carefully and listen to what 

will be presented and what City Manager Mike Talbot has to say. 

Council Member McAnally and Council Member DeLaRosa thanked City Manager Talbot for the material presented 

for their consideration.  She added that if we want to survive the City needs to have their own water supply; noting that 

the LCRA may impose a significant increase in their rates within the next 5 years.     

When asked by the Council, City Manager Talbot confirmed that he had been receiving threats due to the water issue at 

hand.   City Manager took a moment and quoted our great president, JFK in that “if a man abandons his conscious – 

shame on him.”   Council Member McAnally requested our Counselor professional insight on this concern and JC 

Brown acknowledged Council Member McAnally concern about the political pressure upon the City Manager; she 

stated that the City Manager is subject to public opinion.  Council Member McAnally requested that the City Manager 

bring future occurrences to the Council’s attention and City Manager agreed to her request.   

Council Members McAnally and DeLaRosa were in agreement that the threats made to the City Manager were not 

acceptable and they expressed their full support of the City Manager and his hard work.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that the LCRA would be conducting Public Hearings with regard to their rate increase.  

However at this time we do not know what their future rates are going to be.  He added the Council has multiple 

options on water which gives the City flexibility.  He acknowledged that the present value calculations provided by 

City Manager Talbot were a good tool and allows them the opportunity to compare various alternatives.  Mayor Pro-

Tem Beal stated that he is personally considering whether or not we have multiple options with facts for the future.   

Council Member Kesselus agreed with the opinions and stated he is considering the long-term benefit – 10 to 15 years, 

and the options presented on XS Ranch, Ingram/LCRA and LCRA.  He inquired about the quality of water at XS ranch 

and about the hydrologist report regarding the chemical element.  City Manager Talbot responded that the water at XS 

ranch is good quality water.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Beal stated that the Mayor’s comments at the Special Workshop/Utility Meeting held on March 18th 

were brilliant.  At the Mayor’s request, he personally calculated the volume/demand and capability of cities/system and 

emailed the results the Mayor and the City Manager. City Manager Talbot noted he received the copy via the Mayor.     

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  19 



 Regular City Council Meeting      March 25, 2014                 Page 3 of 5 

 

Mayor Orr added that the reports presented here today provide the Council with a variety of options for the decision 

making process, regarding water reservation, only do that for 1 to 5 years and then re-evaluate or needs.  He asked 

would the City be smart to reserve from LCRA.    

Mayor requested additional information and consider the following combinations; Ingram pipeline, XS Ranch water 

rights and LCRA rate increases.  He added that the city needs to spend money within the next 12 months.   City 

Manager Talbot stated he would be meeting with our Financial Advisor and would have a report ready the next 

morning for the Council’s consideration.    

 

A. CONSENT AGENDA - All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory 

by the Council and will be enacted with one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 

Council Member(s) so request.  

A.1   Approval of Minutes for the Regular Council Meetings held on March 11, 2014. 

A.2   Consideration, Discussion and Possible Action on the SECOND READING of a Proposed Revision to an 

ORDINANCE by the City Council of Bastrop, Texas CORRECTING a SCRIVENER’S OMISSION in the 

Bastrop City Code, Chapter 14, “ZONING,” ARTICLE 14.03 ET SEQ., related to HISTORIC 

LANDMARK Preservation; providing a savings clause; and establishing an effective date.  

A.3 Approval of the statutory denial, for a period of 180 days from the date of Council action on this request, for 

the Final Plat for Pecan Park Commercial Phase 1 and public Utility Construction Plans (Southside 

Barbecue lot) being +/-2.923 acres out of a +/- 67.42 Preliminary plat Commercial tract within the Nancy 

Blakey Survey No. 98 within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas located south of Highway 71 West. 

Mayor Terry Orr requested a motion to approve the items on the consent agenda.   

MOTION – Council Member Willie DeLaRosa made the motion. 

SECONDED - Council Member Ken Kesselus seconded the motion. 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 3-0. 

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS &ORDINANCES AND OTHER ITEMS ELIGIBLE FOR CONSIDERATION 

AND/OR ACTION – None.  

C. OLD BUSINESS – None. 

D.  NEW BUSINESS  

D.1 Consideration, discussion and possible action on the FIRST READING of a proposed ORDINANCE 

of the City Council of the City of Bastrop Texas, AMENDING the BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2014 in accordance with existing statutory requirements; appropriating the various amounts 

herein; repealing all prior Ordinances and actions in conflict herewith; and providing for an effective 

date. 
 

Chief Financial Officer Karla Stovall requested the Council consideration and approval of the First Reading 

of the proposed Ordinance Amending the Budget for Fiscal Year 2014.   

Mayor Terry Orr invited questions and comments; with no response he requested a motion to APPROVE 

THE FIRST READING.   

MOTION – Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal made the motion and requested that the Second Reading 

 be added to the Consent Agenda.   

SECONDED – Council Member Willie DeLaRosa seconded the motion. 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  20 



 Regular City Council Meeting      March 25, 2014                 Page 4 of 5 

 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 4-0 

 

 

 D.2 
Consideration, Discussion and Possible Action on the FIRST READING of a PROPOSED 

REVISION to an ORDINANCE of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, AMENDING 

ARTICLE 1.10 “PARKS” of the Code of the City of Bastrop REGARDING MEMBERSHIP ON 

THE PARKS BOARD AND RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS related to same; providing for 

severance and an effective date.  
 

Public Works Director Trey Job requested the Council’s consideration and approval of the First Reading of 

the revision to an ordinance amending Article 1.10 “Parks” regarding membership on the Parks Board and 

Residency requirements.   

Mayor Terry Orr invited questions and comments; with no response he requested a motion to APPROVE 

THE FIRST READING.   

MOTION – Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal made the motion and requested that the Second Reading 

be added to the Consent Agenda.   

SECONDED – Council Member Ken Kesselus seconded the motion. 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 4-0 

 

D.3 Approval of a CONTRACT for ELECTION SERVICES between the Bastrop County and the City of 

Bastrop for the May 10, 2014 Election, recognizing the Bastrop City Hall as the Polling Place for 

Early Voting Dates of April 28, 2014 through May 6, 2014. 
 

City Secretary Elizabeth Lopez requested the Council’s consideration and approval on the updated contract 

for Election Services that reflect that BISD would not be holding an election in May 2014 and would not be 

part of the Joint Election Agreement for Election Services in May 2014.     

Mayor Terry Orr invited questions and comments; with no response he requested a motion.  

MOTION – Mayor Pro-Tem Joe Beal made the motion and requested that we revisit the 

contract in efforts of possibly reducing the contract cost/fees.   

SECONDED – Council Member Kay Garcia McAnally seconded the motion. 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 4-0 

 

 D.4 Consideration and Action with Respect to a “Resolution Expressing Official Intent to Reimburse 

certain expenditures of the City of Bastrop, Texas”. 

City Manager Mike Talbot requested the Council consideration and approval of the Resolution Expressing 

Official Intent to reimburse certain expenditures of the City Bastrop.  He clarified that the approval of the 

Resolution was a safe guard if the Council were to take some type of action on the “Water Supply Project” 

prior to the issuance of the Certificate(s) of Obligation(s). 

Mayor Terry Orr invited questions and comments; with no response he requested a motion.  

MOTION – Council Member Kay Garcia McAnally made the motion. 

SECONDED – Council Member Willie DeLaRosa seconded the motion. 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 4-0 
 

E. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

E.1 THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL MET IN A CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO THE 

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 551, ET SEQ, TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING: 

1. SECTION 551.071(1) (A) and SECTION 551.071(2) – Consultation with Attorney concerning:  (1) 

potential, pending, threatened, and/or contemplated litigation or claims, including but not limited to 

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  21 



 Regular City Council Meeting      March 25, 2014                 Page 5 of 5 

 

“Pine Forest Investments Group, LLC v The  City of Bastrop, et al, cause No. 29,052, In the 21
st
 

Judicial District Court of Bastrop County, Texas,” and/or (2) matter upon which the Attorney has 

a duty and/or responsibility to report to the governmental body, concerning same, and/or any other 

matters posted on the agenda. 

 

E.2 THE BASTROP CITY COUNCIL WILL RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION TO DISCUSS, 

CONSIDER AND/OR TAKE ANY ACTIONS NECESSARY RELATED TO THE EXECUTIVE SESSION 

NOTED HEREIN, OR REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS, NOTED ABOVE, AND/OR RELATED ITEMS. 

   At 8:01pm, Mayor Orr convened the Bastrop City Council into Executive Session. Mayor Orr reconvened the 

Bastrop City Council into open session to discuss, consider and/or take action(s) necessary related to the 

Executive Session noted herein at 8:29 pm.   

   City Manager Talbot noted that after discussion with the City Attorney regarding legal matters concerning 

same, he recommended that the Council authorize him to enter into a settlement with JB Hoffman, on the 

terms presented to Council including a release of claims against JB Hoffman, related to future repair to the 

veneer system on the City’s Fire Station, located on Chestnut Street.   

MOTION – Council Member Willie DeLaRosa made the motion. 

SECONDED – Council Member Kay Garcia McAnally seconded the motion. 

MOTION PASSED – Unanimous vote of 4-0. 

F. ADJOURN - Council Member Willie DeLaRosa made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Council 

Member Kay Garcia McAnally, meeting adjourned at 8:32 pm. 

 

 

APPROVED: _________________________________ ATTEST: _________________________________ 

 Terry Orr, Mayor   Elizabeth Minerva Lopez, City Secretary  

Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  22 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  23 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  24 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  25 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  26 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  27 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  28 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  29 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  30 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  31 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  32 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  33 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  34 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  35 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  36 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  37 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  38 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  39 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  40 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  41 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  42 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  43 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  44 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  45 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  46 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  47 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  48 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  49 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  50 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  51 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  52 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  53 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  54 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  55 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  56 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  57 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  58 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  59 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  60 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  61 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  62 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  63 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  64 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  65 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  66 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  67 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  68 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  69 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  70 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  71 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  72 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  73 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  74 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  75 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  76 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  77 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  78 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  79 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  80 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  81 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  82 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  83 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  84 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  85 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  86 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  87 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  88 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  89 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  90 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  91 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  92 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  93 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  94 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  95 



Regular Council Meeting April 8, 2014 Page  96 


	1
	2



